
 
 
 
 
 

  
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 

Linda Parks, Vice Chair  Don Waunch    Dick Richardson, Chair  Kenneth M. Hess 
Kathy Long   John Zaragoza    Ted Grandsen     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  Janice Parvin  George Lange Louis Cunningham 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 

Everett Millais Kim Uhlich     Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith   

  

AGENDA 
 

VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
Hall of Administration, Board of Supervisors’ Hearing Room 

800 S. Victoria Avenue, Ventura, CA  93009-1850 
9:00 A.M. Wednesday, January 18, 2006 

 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
ELECTIONS 
 
4. Election of Officers for 2006 

Continue action on the Election of Officers for 2006 until the next regular 
meeting 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

5. Commission Presentations and Announcements 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
6. Public Comment 

 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to speak on items not on the 
agenda. 
(The Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission encourages all interested 
parties to speak on any issue on this agenda in which they have an interest, or on 
any matter subject to LAFCO jurisdiction. It is the desire of LAFCO that its business 
be conducted in an orderly and efficient manner. All speakers are requested to fill 
out a Speakers Card and submit it to the Clerk before the item is taken up for 
consideration. All speakers are requested to present their information to LAFCO as 
succinctly as possible with a five (5) minute time limit. Allowing an individual to 
speak more than five minutes is at the discretion of the Chair of the Commission.  
Speakers are encouraged to refrain from restating previous testimony). 

Item%204%20-%20Election%20of%20Officers%2006%20SR-Continue.pdf


VENTURA LAFCO AGENDA 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 3 

CONSENT ITEMS 
 
7. Minutes of the Ventura LAFCO regular meeting held November 16, 2005 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approval 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
8. LAFCO 05-27 City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 

To annex 13 parcels and the April Lane Right of Way to the City of Santa Paula and 
to detach the same area from the Ventura County Resource Conservation District 
and the Ventura County Fire Protection District for the purpose of providing city 
services.  Generally, the proposal area is located westerly of N. Ojai Road (Highway 
150), southerly of Cherry Hill Road, and northerly of Amber Drive in the City of 
Santa Paula. 
  

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approval (A and B) 
 
 
9. LAFCO 05-28 S1 & 3 Sphere of Influence Review and Update 

Review and update the Sphere of Influence for the following Districts: 
05-28S 1 Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District 
05-28S 3 Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: Approval (A and B) 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
10. Employment Agreement – LAFCO Executive Officer 

Amendments to the Employment Agreement between the LAFCO Executive Officer 
and the County of Ventura  

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Ratify and request the Ventura County 

Board of Supervisors approve the 
Agreement 

 
10a. Cancellation of the February 15, 2006 Regular Meeting 
  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider Cancellation 
 
 
 
 
 

Item%207%20-%20Minutes%2011-16-05.pdf
Item%208%20SR%20-%20LAFCO%2005-27%20City%20of%20Santa%20Paula%20Reorganization.pdf
Item%209%20SR%20LAFCo%2005-28%20S1%20&%203%20Sphere%20of%20Influence%20Review%20and%20Update.pdf
Item%2010%20-%20Employment%20Agreement%20LAFCO%20Executive%20Officer%20SR.pdf


VENTURA LAFCO AGENDA 
January 18, 2006 

Page 3 of 3 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
11. Availability of Alternative Formats for CEQA Documents 

Assess Commissioners’ preferences as to desired format for future environmental 
documents: paper copy or digital files on CD.   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Conduct informal poll 
 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

A. Next Regular LAFCO Meeting scheduled for February 15, 2006 

 

 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act  -  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need 
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the LAFCO office (805) 654-2576.  
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable LAFCO to make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to this meeting. 
 
Disclosure of Campaign Contributions - LAFCO Commissioners are disqualified and are not able to 
participate in any proceeding involving an "entitlement for use" if, within the 12 months preceding the 
LAFCO decision, the Commissioner received more than $250 in campaign contributions from the 
applicant, an agency of the applicant, or any financially interested person who actively supports or 
opposes the LAFCO decision on the matter.  Applicants or agents of applicants who have made 
campaign contributions totaling more than $250 to any LAFCO Commissioner in the past 12 months 
are required to disclose that fact for the official record of the proceeding. 
Disclosures must include the amount of the contribution and the recipient Commissioner and may be 
made either in writing to the Clerk of the Commission prior to the hearing or by an oral declaration at 
the time of the hearing. 
The foregoing requirements are set forth in the Political Reform Act of 1974, specifically Government Code, section 

84308. 



 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 

Linda Parks, Vice Chair  Don Waunch    Dick Richardson, Chair  Kenneth M. Hess 
Kathy Long   John Zaragoza    Ted Grandsen     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  Janice Parvin  George Lange Louis Cunningham 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 

Everett Millais Kim Uhlich     Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 

STAFF REPORT 
Meeting Date:  January 18, 2006 

 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Election of Officers for 2006 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Continue action on the election of officers for 2006 until the regular meeting of February 
15, 2006. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Commission’s By-laws (attached) provide for both the Chair and Vice Chair to serve 
one-year terms of office commencing on the third Wednesday of January. This is a 
regular meeting of LAFCO and typically officer elections are conducted at the January 
meeting. 
 
The By-laws also provide for the officers to be rotated, “so that a member of each of the 
four represented groups of LAFCO serves one full year in every four-year period.” For 
2006 a County Member should serve as Chair and the Public Member should serve as 
Vice-Chair. 
 
Regardless of the LAFCO terms of office, the Board of Supervisors annually makes 
appointments to LAFCO. The term of Kathy Long, one of the County Members of the 
Commission, has expired and the Board has yet to make Appointments to Boards and 
Commissions for 2006. It is expected that the Board of Supervisors will determine its 
representatives on LAFCO prior to the Commission’s February meeting. The 
recommendation to continue conducting elections is so the Commission will have more 
complete knowledge about the status of its members when selecting a County Member 
as Chair for this year. 



 
 
Staff Report – Election of Officers for 2006 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 2 

Chapter 1, Section 1.1.4 of the Commissioner’s Handbook – A portion of the 
Ventura LAFCO By-laws relating to officers of the Commission 

 
 
 
SECTION 1.1.4 OFFICERS 
 
1.1.4.1 Chair:  The Chair shall be selected by the members. The Chair shall serve 
as Chair for one year or until his/her successor is selected. The Chair’s term of office shall 
begin the third Wednesday in January. 
 
The office of Chair shall be rotated so that a member of each of the four represented 
groups of LAFCO serves one full year in every four-year period. Commencing January of 
2002, the rotation of the chair shall be in the following sequence:  County, Public, City, 
and Special District member. 
 
1.1.4.2 Vice-Chair:  The Vice-Chair shall be selected by the members. The Vice 
Chair shall serve as Vice-Chair for one year or until his/her successor is selected. The 
Vice-Chair’s term of office shall begin the third Wednesday in January. In the absence of 
the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall serve in place of the Chair. 
 
The office of Vice-Chair shall be rotated so that a member of each of the four represented 
groups of LAFCO serves one full year in every four-year period. In January 2002, the 
rotation of the vice-chair shall be in the following sequence:  Public, City, Special District, 
and County member. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Linda Parks, Vice Chair  Don Waunch    Dick Richardson, Chair  Kenneth M. Hess 
Kathy Long   John Zaragoza    Ted Grandsen     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  Janice Parvin  George Lange Louis Cunningham 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Kim Uhlich     Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 

 
MINUTES 

 

LAFCO REGULAR MEETING 
Wednesday November 16, 2005, 9:00 A.M. 

Board of Supervisors’ Hearing Room, Hall of Administration 
800 S. Victoria Avenue, Ventura, Ca  93009 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Richardson called the November 16, 2005 meeting to order at 
9:00 A.M. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Commissioner Hess led the Pledge of Allegiance  
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 The following commissioners and alternates were present: 

 Commissioner Grandsen 
 Commissioner Hess 
 Commissioner Long 
 Commissioner Parks1 
 Commissioner Richardson 
 Commissioner Waunch 
 Commissioner Zaragoza 
 Alternate Commissioner Cunningham  
 Alternate Commissioner Lange 
 Alternate Commissioner Parvin 
 

4. COMMISSION PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
There were no presentations or announcements. 
 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Chair Richardson requested public comment on any item not on the agenda.  
Receiving no comments from the public, he closed the public comment period for 
items not on the agenda. 

                                            
1 Arrived prior to Public Hearing items 



 
VENTURA LAFCO MINUTES 
November 16, 2005 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
6. Approval of Minutes of the Ventura LAFCO regular meeting held 

October 19, 2005 – WITH CORRECTION – Alternate Commissioner 
Lange not present at the meeting. 

7. LAFCO 05-22 Ojai Valley Sanitary District Annexation – Fulmer 
(Parcels A & B) 

8. LAFCO 05-24 Calleguas Municipal Water District Annexation – 
Cypress No. 8 (Parcel A) 

9. LAFCO 05-25 Ojai Valley Sanitary District Annexation – Hoskins 
(Parcels A and B) 

10. 1st Quarter Budget Report FY 2005-06 
11. Municipal Service Review Work Plan Update 
 

MOTION: Approval as Recommended for all Consent items, with a 
correction in the October 19, 2005 minutes - Alternate 
Commissioner Lange was not present at the meeting: 
Grandsen 

SECOND: Zaragoza 
FOR: Grandsen, Hess, Long, Parks, Richardson, Waunch 

Zaragoza (abstained from Item 6, Minutes only) 
AGAINST: None 
ABSTAIN: Zaragoza (Item 6, Minutes only) 
MOTION PASSED 6/0/0 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
12. LAFCO 05-26 City of Santa Paula Reorganization – Islands (Parcels A-C) 

Kim Uhlich presented the staff report. Chair Richardson opened the public 
hearing. With no comments from the public, he closed the public hearing. 
 

MOTION: Approval as Recommended: Long 
SECOND: Zaragoza 
FOR: Grandsen, Hess, Long, Parks, Richardson, Waunch, 

Zaragoza 
AGAINST: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
MOTION PASSED 7/0/0 
 



VENTURA LAFCO MINUTES 
November 16, 2005 

Page 3 of 4 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS (Continued) 
 
13. LAFCO 05-28 S1-4 Sphere of Influence Review and Update 

Everett Millais presented the staff report. Chair Richardson opened the public 
hearing. With no comments from the public, he closed the public hearing. 
Commissioner Parks voiced concern about a parcel inside the sphere but not 
within the curb of city of Thousand Oaks and suggested that the Resolution be 
amended as follows.  
 

 (3) “… provided however that the sphere of influence of the District shall 
match the sphere of influence of the City of Thousand Oaks in the area 
adjacent to the approximately 10.2 acre area used for electrical transmission 
lines located southerly of Moorpark Road, southeasterly of the intersection of 
Santa Rosa Road and Moorpark Road.” 
 

MOTION: Approval as Recommended including the changes to 
the Resoluiton as proposed by Commissioner Parks: 
Hess 

SECOND: Long 
FOR: Grandsen, Hess, Long, Parks, Richardson, Waunch, 

Zaragoza 
AGAINST: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
MOTION PASSED 7/0/0 
 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
14. LAFCO Salary Classifications 

Everett Millais presented the staff report and discussed changes being 
recommended.  
 

MOTION: Approval as Recommended: Long 
SECOND: Waunch 
FOR: Grandsen, Hess, Long, Parks, Richardson, Waunch, 

Zaragoza 
AGAINST: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
MOTION PASSED 7/0/0 
 

15. CALAFCO Dues 
Everett Millais presented the staff report. With no action required, Commissioner 
Parks motioned to support CALAFCO’s recommendation to increase 
membership dues. Commissioner Zaragoza seconded the motion.  The results of 
the Commission’s discussion will be shared with the CALAFCO Board at the 
January 13, 2006 meeting. 



 
VENTURA LAFCO MINUTES 
November 16, 2005 
Page 4 of 4 

  
 
INFORMATION  
16. New Community Services District Law: Everett Millais presented information 

about SB 135, the new version of the Community Services District law, that will 
take effect on January 1, 2006.  He indicated he has discussed the new law with 
the staff of each of the three Community Services Districts in the county.  

 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS REPORT 
The City Selection Committee is scheduled to meet December 9 to appoint a City 

representative to serve a new 4-year term (January 1, 2006 – January 1, 2010) 
on LAFCO.  

The Commission will be sent a notice of cancellation by November 30 if the special 
meeting scheduled for December 7, 2005 is not needed. 

The next regular LAFCO meeting is January 18, 2006.  Currently, there are two 
potential proposals for action, two sphere of influence updates, and election of 
officers slated for the January agenda. 

    
 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENT 
There were no Commissioner comments. 
 
 
TIME CERTAIN ITEMS 
 
10:30 AM CLOSED SESSION 

  Chair Richardson moved the meeting to closed session to consider a Public   
Employee Performance Evaluation for the LAFCO Executive Officer and 
announced that the meeting would be adjourned at the close of the session and 
that no public announcement would be made. 
 

 



 

 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Linda Parks, Vice Chair  Don Waunch    Dick Richardson, Chair  Kenneth M. Hess 
Kathy Long   John Zaragoza    Ted Grandsen     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  Janice Parvin  George Lange Louis Cunningham 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Kim Uhlich     Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
Meeting Date: January 18, 2006 

 
 
LAFCO CASE  
NAME & NO: LAFCO 05-27 City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 
 
 

PROPOSAL: To annex 13 parcels and the April Lane right of way to the City of 
Santa Paula and to detach the same area from the Ventura County 
Resource Conservation District and the Ventura County Fire 
Protection District for the purpose of providing city services. 

 
 
SIZE: Approximately 4.82 acres 
 
 
LOCATION: Generally, the proposal area is located westerly of N. Ojai Road 

(Highway 150), southerly of Cherry Hill Road, and northerly of 
Amber Drive in the City of Santa Paula.  The parcels are identified 
by the following street addresses:  17061, 17028, 17053, 17045, 
17036, 17037, 17096, 17031, 17058, 17025, and 17020 April Lane; 
and 3489 Ojai Road. 

 
 
PROPONENT: The City of Santa Paula by resolution. 
 
 
NOTICE: This matter has been noticed as a PUBLIC HEARING as 

prescribed by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
LAFCO 05-27 
City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 8 

PARCEL INFORMATION:   
 
   

APN 
 

Address APN Address 

038-0-122-165 17061 April Lane 038-0-122-235 17028 April Lane 
038-0-122-175 17053 April Lane 038-0-122-245 Vacant 
038-0-122-185 17045 April Lane 038-0-122-255 17036 April Lane 
038-0-122-195 17037 April Lane 038-0-122-265 17096 April Lane 
038-0-122-205 17031 April Lane 038-0-122-275 17058 April Lane 
038-0-122-215 17025 April Lane 038-0-122-285 3489 Ojai Road 
038-0-122-225 17020 April Lane   

 
 

 



 
LAFCO 05-27 

City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane  
January 18, 2006 

Page 3 of 8 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
A. Certify that the Commission has reviewed and considered the information 

contained in the CEQA Notice of Exemption prepared by the City of Santa Paula 
as lead agency, dated September 7, 2005, and determine that the reorganization 
is exempt under Section 15319(a) of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 
B. Adopt the attached resolution (LAFCO 05-27) making determinations and 

approving the City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane. 
 
 
 
 
GENERAL ANALYSIS 
 

1.  Land Use 
 

Site Information  
 

 
Land Use 

Zone District 
Classification 

General Plan 
Designation 

 
Existing 
 
 

 
Single Family           
  Dwellings 
 
 
 
 
 

County: 
R 1-10,000 sq ft (Urban 
Residential, 10,000 square 
feet min. lot area); 
RE 1 ac (Rural Exclusive, 1 
acre min.) 
 
City: NA 

County:   
Existing Community 
Urban Reserve 
 
 
 
 
City: Single Family  
          Residential

Proposed The City of Santa 
Paula has adopted 
pre-zone 
designations 
consistent with the 
existing uses and 
general plan 
designations for 
the parcels within 
the proposal area. 

County: NA 
 
 
 
 
 
City: Single Family  
          Residential 

County: No change; 
upon annexation County 
General Plan 
designations will not be 
applicable. 
 
City:  No change 

 
 



 
LAFCO 05-27 
City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 
January 18, 2006 
Page 4 of 8 

Conformity with Plans 
 
With the exception of one parcel, which is vacant, all the parcels within the 
proposal area are developed with single-family residences.  These uses will not 
change as a result of the reorganization proposal.  The proposal is consistent 
with the City of Santa Paula’s General Plan, which designates the area as single-
family residential.  The City also intends to pre-zone the parcels within the 
proposal area to reflect the existing single-family residential uses.    
 
The proposal area is located within the CURB boundary of the City of Santa 
Paula, and none of the lots are affected by the County’s SOAR ordinance. 
 

 
Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning and General Plan Designations 

 
This proposal will have no effect on surrounding land uses, zoning or general 
plan designations. 

 
 
Topography, Natural Features and Drainage 

      
The proposal area has an overall slope of less than five percent and drains 
toward the existing storm drains within the adjacent streets. The lots are 
landscaped with a variety of native and non-native flora. 
 
There are no significant natural features within the proposal area, although it is 
adjacent to a steeply sloped hillside leading up to the eastern ridgeline of Fagan 
Canyon. 

 
 

2. Impact on Prime Agricultural Land, Agriculture, and Open Space 
 

Agricultural Land and Agriculture 
 
Twelve of the thirteen parcels in the proposal area are currently developed with 
single-family residences and are zoned for residential uses. There are no 
agricultural uses on any of the parcels, or on any adjoining parcels. 
 
None of the parcels are subject to a Land Conservation Act contract or a 
Farmland Security Zone agreement, and none are located within a greenbelt. 
 
 
 
 



 
LAFCO 05-27 

City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane  
January 18, 2006 

Page 5 of 8 

Open Space 
 

None of the lots in the proposal area are considered open space pursuant to 
Government Code Sections 56059 and 65560, and the proposal will not impact 
open space lands. 
 

3. Population 
 

According to the County of Ventura Registrar of Voters, there are more than 12 
registered voters in the proposal area.  As such, the area is considered to be 
“inhabited” in terms of LAFCO proceedings, and the proposal has been noticed 
as a public hearing. 

 
4. Services and Controls – Need, Cost, Adequacy and Availability 
 

According to the City, there is sufficient capacity and ability to provide all City 
services upon annexation. 

 
The City is currently the water provider to all the parcels within the proposal area.  
Therefore there will be no change with respect to water service. 

 
Eight of the 13 parcels within the proposal area are currently connected to the 
City’s sewer system (Attachment 3).  Upon annexation, the property owners not 
already connected may choose to do so at any time in the future, unless 
connection is mandated due to the need for septic system repair/replacement or 
as a condition of City building permit issuance associated with future remodeling 
projects.   
 
Currently, the Ventura County Sheriff’s Department and the Ventura County Fire 
District serve the proposal area.  The Santa Paula Police and Fire Departments, 
whose facilities are located closer to the proposal area that those of the 
corresponding County agencies, will provide service upon annexation.   

 
 

5. Boundaries and Lines of Assessment 
 

The boundaries are definite and certain. There are no conflicts with lines of 
assessment or ownership.   
 
The maps and legal descriptions for this proposal received from the proponent 
have been checked by the County Surveyor and have been certified as being 
accurate and sufficient for the preparation of a Certificate of Completion pursuant 
to Government Code Section 57201 and for filing with the State Board of 
Equalization. 



 
LAFCO 05-27 
City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 
January 18, 2006 
Page 6 of 8 

 
6. Assessed Value, Tax Rates and Indebtedness 

 
According to the County Assessor, all lots within the proposal area are currently 
in tax rate area 69003 and will be assigned to tax rate area 04005 upon 
completion of proceedings.  However the current tax rate of $1.041397 per $100 
of assessed valuation will remain the same upon annexation.   
 
The assessed land value of each lot per the 2005 - 2006 tax roll is: 
 

Assessor’s 
 Parcel 

Property Address Property Owner(s) Assessed 
Land Value 

038-0-122-165 17061 April Lane Wilson Ralph E-Marjorie 
K Tr 

$15,801 

038-0-122-175 17053 April Lane Lee Roger M-Joan M 
Trust 

$15,801 

038-0-122-185 17045 April Lane Brock Matthew M-
Kathleen M 

$149,586 

038-0-122-195 17037 April Lane Harbison Charles E-
Nancy L 

$15,801 

038-0-122-205 17031 April Lane Shield Timothy R-Sylvia L $253,725 
038-0-122-215 17025 April Lane Reyes Augustine-Victoria 

Tr 
$16,684 

038-0-122-225 17020 April Lane Thompson John D-
Virginia Tr 

$89,381 

038-0-122-235 17028 April Lane Butler Allan-Carole $15,718 
038-0-122-245 Vacant Thompson John D-

Virginia Tr 
$15,801 

038-0-122-255 17036 April Lane Thompson John D-
Virginia Tr 

$16,684 

038-0-122-265 17096 April Lane Lindsey Ronald D-Luana $96,399 
038-0-122-275 17058 April Lane Reyes Paul A-Gloria $15,801 
038-0-122-285 3489 Ojai Road Hillestad Orven T Tr $16,684 
TOTAL                                                                                             $ 733,866 

 
 

7. Environmental Impact of the Proposal 
 

The City of Santa Paula is the lead agency for this proposal and found the 
proposal to be categorically exempt under Section 15319(a) (annexation to a city 
of areas containing existing structures developed to the density allowed by the 
current zoning) of the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. As the 



 
LAFCO 05-27 

City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane  
January 18, 2006 

Page 7 of 8 

annexation is to provide city services to existing lots with existing development, a 
categorical exemption is appropriate for this proposal.  

 
8. Regional Housing Needs 
 

According to the California Housing and Community Development Department 
the County of Ventura adopted an updated General Plan Housing Element on 
August 19, 2002 and completed State review for compliance on September 20, 
2002. The annexation proposal area is fully developed consistent with the 
County’s General Plan. Therefore, the proposal will have no effect on the fair 
share of the regional housing needs for the County of Ventura. 

 
 

9. Landowner and Annexing Agency Consent 
 

According informal surveys conducted by the City and representatives affiliated 
with the adjacent Fagan Canyon development proposal, a majority of the April 
Lane property owners do not object to annexation.  As shown by the April Lane 
Sewer Connections map (Attachment 3), as part of their prior sewer connection 
agreement with the City, the owners of seven of the parcels within the proposal 
area are required to consent to annexation. However, no written consent to 
annex by any of the property owners was submitted with the application. 

 
The City has chosen to undertake this reorganization proposal as a precursor to 
the filing of an application for annexation of territory within the Fagan Canyon 
area, which is expected to occur in the near future.  If the territory included in the 
April Lane reorganization proposal were to remain unincorporated at the time a 
proposal for annexation of the Fagan Canyon area were approved (assuming the 
boundaries of which would be as currently defined), the April Lane area would be 
left as an island of unincorporated territory.  Both State Law (Gov. Code Section 
56668(f)) and local policy discourage proposals that “create boundaries which 
result in islands…” (Commissioners Handbook, Policy 3.1.3.4(b)).  Thus, in 
requesting LAFCO approval of a proposal to annex the April Lane area at this 
time, the City hopes to resolve a potential issue associated with a reorganization 
application for the Fagan Canyon area that is yet to be filed.  
 
If the Commission does not approve the April Lane reorganization proposal, 
LAFCO staff would recommend that the City’s good faith effort to avoid the 
creation of the April Lane island be taken into consideration if and when a 
reorganization proposal for Fagan Canyon is filed. 

 
Because 100% of the property owners involved have not consented and because 
there are more than 12 registered voters reside in the area, LAFCO must 
conduct protest proceedings. Thus, based on the boundaries established and the 



 
LAFCO 05-27 
City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 
January 18, 2006 
Page 8 of 8 

terms and conditions set as a part of any approval, all property owners and all 
registered voters within the affected area will receive a notice describing the 
proposal and how protests may be filed. Authority to conduct the protest 
proceeding has been delegated to the LAFCO Executive Officer. The Executive 
Officer will schedule and notice protest proceedings as required by law. 
Depending on the number of registered voter protests and/or the value of 
landowner protests, the reorganization will either be finalized or will be brought 
back to the Commission for ordering an election or termination of proceedings. 

 
 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS AVAILABLE: 
 
A. If the Commission, following public testimony and review of the materials submitted, 

determines that further information is necessary, a motion to continue the proposal 
should state specifically the type of information desired and specify a date certain for 
further consideration. 

 
B. If the Commission, following public testimony and review of materials submitted, 

wishes to deny or modify this proposal, a motion to deny should include adoption of 
this Report and all referenced materials as part of the public record. 

 
 
 
BY: _____________________________ 
 Kim Uhlich, Senior Analyst 
 
Attachments:   (1) Vicinity Map 
           (2) LAFCO 05-27 Resolution 

(3) April Lane Sewer Connections Map 



BIRCH

FA
IR

W
EATHER

APRIL

SA
N

TA PA
U

LA O
JA

I

ALLEY

STONEGATE

C
E

D
A

R GATEWOOD

AMBER

HONEYWOOD

M
A

R
IP

O
S

A

M
AG

N
O

LIA

O
JA

I

MAPLE

FAIRWEATHER

Ventura LAFCO Vicinity Map
LAFCO 05-27 City of Santa Paula Reorganization - 

April Lane /
0 690 1,380345

Feet

Legend
Santa Paula Boundary

!
!

!
!

!! !! !!

!
!

!!!!!!

Santa Paula Sphere of Influence Boundary

April Lane Annexation Area

ATTACHMENT 1



 

 

LAFCO 05-27 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION MAKING DETERMINATIONS 
AND APPROVING THE CITY OF SANTA PAULA 
REORGANIZATION – APRIL LANE; ANNEXATION TO 
THE CITY OF SANTA PAULA AND DETACHMENT FROM 
THE VENTURA COUNTY RESOURCE CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT AND VENTURA COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 
 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the above-referenced proposal has been filed with the Executive 

Officer of the Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission pursuant to the 

Cortese/Knox/Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (Section 56000 

of the California Government Code); and 

WHEREAS, at the times and in the manner required by law, the Executive Officer 

gave notice of the public hearing by the Commission of the proposal as required by law; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the proposal was duly considered on January 18, 2006 as specified 

in the notice of hearing; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission heard, discussed and considered all oral and 

written testimony for and against the proposal including, but not limited to, the LAFCO 

Staff Report and Recommendations, the environmental determination, Sphere of 

Influence, and applicable local plans and policies; and 

WHEREAS, not all landowners within the affected territory have consented to the 

proposal; and 

WHEREAS, proof has been given to the Commission that the affected territory 

has more than 12 registered voters and is considered inhabited; and 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission finds the proposal to be in 

the best interest of the landowners and present and future inhabitants within the City of 

Santa Paula and within the affected territory, and the organization of local governmental 

agencies within Ventura County. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the 

Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission as follows: 
 

(1) The LAFCO Staff Report and Recommendation for approval of the 

proposal dated January 18, 2006, is adopted. 



 

 
 
LAFCO 05-27 City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 
Resolution of Approval 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 3 

(2) Said reorganization is hereby approved subject to conducting authority 

proceedings as prescribed in Government Code Sections 57000 to 57090. 

(3) The boundaries of the proposal are found to be definite and certain as 

approved and set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 

hereof. 

(4) Said territory is found to be inhabited. 

(5) The subject proposal is assigned the following distinctive short form 

designation:  LAFCO 05-27 CITY OF SANTA PAULA 

REORGANIZATION – APRIL LANE 

(6) The Commission has reviewed and considered the lead agency’s 

determination that the reorganization is categorically exempt under 

Section 15319(a) (annexation to a city of areas containing existing 

structures developed to the density allowed by the current zoning) of the 

California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and finds the 

reorganization to be categorically exempt under Section 15319(a).  

(7) The Commission directs staff to file a Notice of Exemption in the same 

manner as a lead agency, under Section 15062 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. 

(8) This reorganization shall not be recorded until all LAFCO fees have 

been paid and until fees necessary for filing with the State Board of 

Equalization have been submitted to the Executive Officer. 

(9) The Executive Officer is hereby directed to conduct protest proceedings in 

accordance with Government Code Section 57050. 

(10) The Commission hereby delegates to the Executive Officer the authority to 

determine the amount of the protest pursuant to Government Code 

Section 57075(a). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

LAFCO 05-27 City of Santa Paula Reorganization – April Lane 
Resolution of Approval 

January 18, 2006 
Page 3 of 3 

This resolution was adopted on January 18, 2006. 
 
AYES: Commissioners Grandsen, Hess, Long, Parks, Parvin, Richardson, 

Waunch 
 
NOES: None 
 
ABSTAINS: None 
 
 
 
 
Dated: ______________  ___________________________________________ 
  Chair, Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Exhibit A 
 
 
 
Copies: City of Santa Paula 
 Ventura County Assessor 
 Ventura County Auditor 
 Ventura County Surveyor 
 Ventura County Planning 
       Ventura County Elections – Registrar of Voters 





 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Linda Parks, Vice Chair  Don Waunch    Dick Richardson, Chair  Kenneth M. Hess 
Kathy Long   John Zaragoza    Ted Grandsen     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  Janice Parvin  George Lange Louis Cunningham 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Kim Uhlich     Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date:  January 18, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Sphere of Influence Review and Update 
  LAFCO 05-28S 1 Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
  LAFCO 05-28S 3 Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
A. As lead agency, determine that the sphere of influence update for Channel Islands 

Beach Community Services District is exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the 
CEQA Guidelines and adopt the attached resolution (LAFCO 05-28S 1) making 
determinations and updating the sphere of influence for the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District. 

 
B. As lead agency, determine that the sphere of influence update for Pleasant Valley 

Recreation and Park District is exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA 
Guidelines and adopt the attached resolution (LAFCO 05-28S 3) making 
determinations and updating the sphere of influence for the Pleasant Valley 
Recreation and Park District. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For each city and special district LAFCO must determine and adopt a sphere of 
influence and, “…review and update, as necessary, the adopted sphere not less than 
once every five years.” (CA Government Code §56425(f)). In order to prepare and 
update spheres of influence LAFCO must conduct municipal service reviews. During 
2003 the Commission conducted water and wastewater service reviews for the 36 
agencies (cities and special districts) in the County that provide some form of water 



 
LAFCO 05-28S 1 & 05-28S 3 Staff Report 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 5 

and/or wastewater services. In 2004 – 2005 municipal service reviews were conducted 
for the remaining services provided by most special districts. Based on the completed 
municipal service reviews, sphere of influence updates for both the Channel Islands 
Beach Community Service District and Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District 
were initially scheduled for Commission consideration on November 17, 2005, but were 
continued to the January 18, 2006 meeting at the request of each District’s Board of 
Directors. Between November and now each District has had time to further review the 
recommended changes. Based on these reviews, each District is in support of the 
recommendations. 
 
Actions relating to spheres of influence must occur at a public hearing. As such, notice 
was published as required by law for hearings on November 16, 2005, and a 
subsequent notice was published for hearings on January 18, 2006, for each of the two 
possible sphere of influence updates discussed in this report. 
 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
 
The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, formed in 1982, is an 
independent district governed by a five member, elected board of directors. The District 
provides water, wastewater and solid waste (trash) collection services to the 
unincorporated communities of Hollywood Beach, Hollywood-by-the-Sea and Silver 
Strand, water and wastewater services to the unincorporated water areas of Channel 
Islands Harbor, and, via contracts with the City of Oxnard and the County of Ventura, 
water and wastewater services to areas in the City of Oxnard adjacent to Channel 
Islands Harbor (including County owned properties in Channel Islands Harbor). 
 
The municipal service review for water and wastewater services provided by Channel 
Islands Beach Community Services District was included with the water and wastewater 
services reviewed for the Santa Clara River Watershed area and was completed in 
December 2003 (final published in January 2004). The service review for the solid 
waste collection services of the District was completed in January 2005. Both of these 
municipal service review reports discussed the possibility of LAFCO establishing a 
“zero” sphere for the District. However, such an action was not included in the 
Commission’s actions making determinations for either of these service reviews, 
primarily because the Commission has not established any overall policies about the 
meaning or significance of zero spheres of influence. 
 
The 2005 Solid Waste Services Municipal Service Review report contained a comment 
that if a zero sphere of influence was not established for the District, the sphere should 
be reduced and limited to the current service area of the District. Consistent with this 
comment, and for purposes of proposing a sphere of influence update, staff focused on 
the areas where the District is actually providing services and where the District has the 
majority of its infrastructure. The results, and what is now being recommended for the 
District’s updated sphere of influence, are relatively minor changes. The sphere of 
influence would be adjusted at the northerly end of Hollywood Beach and at the 



 
LAFCO 05-28S 1 & 05-28S 3 Staff Report 

January 18, 2006 
Page 3 of 5 

southerly end of Silver Strand to coincide with the District’s boundary and to follow 
existing property lines. Along Channel Islands Boulevard the sphere would be adjusted 
to follow the northerly side of the street right-of-way. Because the District has service 
lines in Victoria Avenue it is also recommended that the sphere line be moved from the 
westerly side of the Victoria Avenue right-of-way to the easterly side of the street. 
Rather than decreasing the area of the District’s sphere of influence because of the 
current service area, the recommendation would actually slightly increase the area 
within the sphere. 
 
The recommended sphere of influence update has been reviewed by the District staff 
and discussed at three meetings of the District Board. While concerns were expressed 
about the language in the municipal service review reports, especially the commentary 
about a possible zero sphere of influence for the District, the District Board concurs with 
the recommendation now being made. 
 
For CEQA purposes, it is recommended that the Commission as lead agency find the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District sphere of influence update exempt 
from CEQA under Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. This is the so-called 
“general rule” exemption, meaning that it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment. 
The recommended sphere of influence update for Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District will have no effect on land use or service and will not result in any 
development. The District has no land use authority and the area involved is all 
currently being served by the District and will continue to be served by the District for 
the foreseeable future. 
 
When determining an agency’s sphere of influence Government Code Section 56425(e) 
requires the Commission consider and prepare written statements of its determinations 
with respect to each of the following: 

(1) The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and 
open-space lands. – The sphere of influence update for Channel Islands 
Beach Community Services District is to ensure that the District’s sphere 
better matches the District’s current service area, property boundaries and 
street rights-of-way. There will be no development, no change in land use 
and no impact to agricultural and open space lands as a result of the 
sphere of influence update. 

(2) The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area. 
– No changes in public facilities or services provided by the District will 
result from this sphere of influence update. The present and probable need 
for public facilities and services in the area will not be affected by the 
sphere of influence update. 

(3) The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services 
that the agency provides or is authorized to provide. – The sphere of 
influence update will not affect the present capacity of public facilities or the 
services provided by Channel Islands Beach Community Services District. 



 
LAFCO 05-28S 1 & 05-28S 3 Staff Report 
January 18, 2006 
Page 4 of 5 

(4) The existence of any social or economic community of interest in the area if 
the commission determines that they are relevant to the agency. – Both 
socially and economically the areas within the District’s boundary and 
sphere of influence are linked to the greater community of interest of the 
cities of Oxnard and Port Hueneme. These communities of interest will not 
change as a result of the updated sphere of influence. 

 
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District 
 
The Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District is an independent district that provides 
recreation and park services to the City of Camarillo and vicinity. Formed in 1962 (two 
years before the City of Camarillo incorporated in 1964), the District is governed by a 
five member, elected board of directors. 
 
The municipal service review for the District was approved by the Commission in March 
2005. The service review report suggested five possible areas of change to the District’s 
sphere of influence (Attachment 1). Based on discussions with the District staff and a 
review of what actions LAFCO can take without the need for more intensive CEQA 
review, four of the areas identified in the service review report as possible sphere of 
influence changes are being recommended as a part of the sphere of influence update. 
This recommendation was presented to the District Board in November and reviewed 
again in December. The Board concurs with the recommendation. 
 
One area of possible change that was suggested in the service review report is not 
being recommended to be included in the sphere of influence update. This area is 
located southerly of Highway 101, north of the Camarillo Airport and west of Wood 
Road (area no. 1 on Attachment 1). This area is within the City of Camarillo’s CURB 
boundary and, based on service needs, should potentially be included in the District’s 
sphere of influence and annexed into the District upon development. The City of 
Camarillo’s General Plan indicates that this area should be developed for research and 
development and office uses. 
 
If the Commission wanted to include this area as a part of the sphere of influence 
update at this time, and given the City’s General Plan designations, it would likely mean 
that LAFCO, as lead agency under CEQA for the sphere of influence update, would 
have to analyze the impacts of the potential changes envisioned by the City’s General 
Plan. This is not recommended as LAFCO has no role in the land use decisions 
necessary for the area to be developed to City requirements. As the City may seek to 
amend its sphere of influence and annex this area in the future based on potential land 
use changes, it would be appropriate for the District to be a part of that process and to 
possibly simultaneously seek to amend the District’s sphere and annex the area into the 
District depending on service needs. 
 
For CEQA purposes, it is recommended that the Commission as lead agency find the 
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District sphere of influence update exempt from 



 
LAFCO 05-28S 1 & 05-28S 3 Staff Report 

January 18, 2006 
Page 5 of 5 

CEQA under Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. This is the “general rule” 
exemption, meaning that it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the 
activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment. While the 
recommended sphere of influence update includes four areas of change, there will be 
no development of any kind or any land use changes that result from this update. The 
District has no land use authority and bases its public facilities and services on the City 
of Camarillo General Plan and the plans of other public agencies, including the County. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 56425(e) it is recommended that the 
Commission consider and adopt written statements of its determinations with respect to 
each of the following: 

(1) The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and 
open-space lands. – The sphere of influence update for Pleasant Valley 
Recreation and Park District is to provide for all areas currently being 
served by the District, all developed areas within the City of Camarillo’s 
CURB boundary and all contiguous City of Camarillo owned property, to be 
included in the District’s sphere of influence. There will be no development, 
no change in land use and no impact to agricultural and open space lands 
as a result of the sphere of influence update. 

(2) The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area. 
– No changes in public facilities or services provided by the District will 
result from this sphere of influence update. The District bases its public 
facilities and services on the City of Camarillo General Plan and the plans 
of other public agencies, including the County. 

(3) The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services 
that the agency provides or is authorized to provide. – The sphere of 
influence update will not affect the present capacity of public facilities or the 
adequacy of the services provided by the Pleasant Valley Recreation and 
Park District. 

(4) The existence of any social or economic community of interest in the area if 
the commission determines that they are relevant to the agency. - The 
sphere of influence update will provide for the Pleasant Valley Recreation 
and Park District sphere of influence to better coincide with the City of 
Camarillo’s social and economic community of interest. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Table III-12 and Map III-8 from the Recreation and Park Services, Special 
Districts, Municipal Service Review Report, March 16, 2005, relating to the 
Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District. 

3. LAFCO Resolution 05-28S 1 – Sphere of Influence Update for Channel Islands 
Beach Community Services District. 

4. LAFCO Resolution 05-28S 3 – Sphere of Influence Update for Pleasant Valley 
Recreation and Park District. 





 

 
 

LAFCO 05-28S 1 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION MAKING DETERMINATIONS 
AND APPROVING THE UPDATE OF THE SPHERE OF 
INFLUENCE FOR THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56425 et seq. requires the Local Agency 

Formation Commission (LAFCO) to develop and determine the sphere of influence of 

each local governmental agency within the County; and  

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56425(f) requires that LAFCO review and 

update the adopted sphere of influence boundaries, as necessary, not less than once 

every five years; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56430 requires that a municipal service 

review be conducted prior to or in conjunction with a sphere of influence update, and 

WHEREAS, LAFCO conducted a municipal service review of the services 

provided by the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District and adopted 

written determinations as required by Government Code Section 56430 on December 

12, 2003 for the water and wastewater services provided by the District and on January 

19, 2005 for the solid waste services provided by the District; and 

 WHEREAS, the District Board of the Channel Islands Beach Community 

Services District has reviewed the changes proposed for this sphere of influence update 

and has no objections; and 

 WHEREAS, no change in regulation, land use or development will occur as a 

result of updating the District’s sphere of influence; 

 WHEREAS, at the times and in the manner required by law, the Executive Officer 

gave notice of the consideration of this action by the Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the sphere of influence update action was duly considered at a 

public hearing on January 18, 2006; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission heard, discussed and considered all oral and 

written testimony for and against the sphere of influence update including, but not 

limited to, testimony at the public hearing on January 16, 2006 and the LAFCO 

Executive Officer’s January 16, 2006 staff report and recommendation; 

 



 

 
 
Resolution LAFCO 05-28S 1 
Sphere of Influence Update Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED that the 

Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission: 
 

(1) The Executive Officer’s Staff Report and Recommendation for approval of 
the sphere of influence update for Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District, dated January 18, 2006, is adopted. 

(2) The Commission has considered the criteria set forth in Government Code 
§56425(e) and determines as follows: 
(a) The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural 

and open-space lands. – The sphere of influence update for Channel 
Islands Beach Community Services District is to ensure that the 
District’s sphere better matches the District’s current service area, 
property boundaries and street rights-of-way. There will be no 
development, no change in land use and no impact to agricultural and 
open space lands as a result of the sphere of influence update. 

(b) The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the 
area. – No changes in public facilities or services provided by the 
District will result from this sphere of influence update. The present 
and probable need for public facilities and services in the area will not 
be affected by the sphere of influence update. 

(c) The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public 
services that the agency provides or is authorized to provide. – The 
sphere of influence update will not affect the present capacity of public 
facilities or the services provided by Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District. 

(d) The existence of any social or economic community of interest in the 
area if the commission determines that they are relevant to the 
agency. – Both socially and economically the areas within the District’s 
boundary and sphere of influence are linked to the greater community 
of interest of the cities of Oxnard and Port Hueneme. These 
communities of interest will not change as a result of the updated 
sphere of influence. 

(3) The sphere of influence for Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District is hereby updated to include the area shown as “proposed sphere 
of influence”, as generally depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

(4) The Commission directs staff to have the official sphere of influence 
geographic information system data maintained for the Ventura LAFCO by 
the Ventura County Public Works Agency and Information Systems 
Department as the official sphere of influence record for Channel Islands 
Beach Community Services District updated consistent with this action. 



 

 
 

Resolution LAFCO 05-28S 1 
Sphere of Influence Update Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

January 18, 2006 
Page 3 of 3 

(5) The Commission, as lead agency for the purposes of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), hereby determines that the sphere of 
influence update for Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
is exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines. 

(6) The Commission directs staff to file a Notice of Exemption as lead agency 
under Section 15062 of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 

 

 

 
This resolution was adopted on January 18, 2006. 
 
AYES: Commissioners Grandsen, Hess, Long, Parks, Parvin, Richardson, 

Waunch 
 

NOES: None 
 

ABSTAINS: None 
 

 
 
Dated: ______________  ___________________________________________ 
     Chair, Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
 
Copies: Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

City of Oxnard 
City of Port Hueneme 
Ventura County Assessor 
Ventura County Auditor 
Ventura County Information systems Department 
Ventura County Surveyor 
Ventura County Planning 



 
 

LAFCO 05-28S 3 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE VENTURA LOCAL AGENCY 
FORMATION COMMISSION MAKING DETERMINATIONS 
AND APPROVING THE UPDATE OF THE SPHERE OF 
INFLUENCE FOR THE PLEASANT VALLEY 
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56425 et seq. requires the Local Agency 

Formation Commission (LAFCO) to develop and determine the sphere of influence of 

each local governmental agency within the County; and  

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56425(f) requires that LAFCO review and 

update the adopted sphere of influence boundaries, as necessary, not less than once 

every five years; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56430 requires that a municipal service 

review be conducted prior to or in conjunction with a sphere of influence update, and 

WHEREAS, LAFCO conducted a municipal service review of the services 

provided by the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District and adopted written 

determinations as required by Government Code Section 56430 on March 16, 2005; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the District has reviewed the changes proposed for this sphere of 

influence update and has no objections; and 

 WHEREAS, no change in regulation, land use or development will occur as a 

result of updating the District’s sphere of influence; 

 WHEREAS, at the times and in the manner required by law, the Executive Officer 

gave notice of the consideration of this action by the Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the sphere of influence update action was duly considered at a 

public hearing on January 18, 2006; and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission heard, discussed and considered all oral and 

written testimony for and against the sphere of influence update including, but not 

limited to, testimony at the public hearing on January 18, 2006 and the LAFCO 

Executive Officer’s January 18, 2006 staff report and recommendation; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED that the 

Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission: 
 

(1) The Executive Officer’s Staff Report and Recommendation for approval of 
the sphere of influence update for Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park 
District, dated January 18, 2006, is adopted. 



 
 
Resolution LAFCO 05-28S 3 
Sphere of Influence Update Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 3 

(2) The Commission has considered the criteria set forth in Government Code 
§56425(e) and determines as follows: 
(a) The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural 

and open-space lands. – The sphere of influence update for Pleasant 
Valley Recreation and Park District is to provide for all areas currently 
being served by the District, all developed areas within the City of 
Camarillo’s CURB boundary and all contiguous City of Camarillo 
owned property, to be included in the District’s sphere of influence. 
There will be no development, no change in land use and no impact to 
agricultural and open space lands as a result of the sphere of influence 
update. 

(b) The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the 
area. – No changes in public facilities or services provided by the 
District will result from this sphere of influence update. The District 
bases its public facilities and services on the City of Camarillo General 
Plan and the plans of other public agencies, including the County. 

(c) The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public 
services that the agency provides or is authorized to provide. – The 
sphere of influence update will not affect the present capacity of public 
facilities or the adequacy of the services provided by the Pleasant 
Valley Recreation and Park District. 

(d) The existence of any social or economic community of interest in the 
area if the commission determines that they are relevant to the 
agency. - The sphere of influence update will provide for the Pleasant 
Valley Recreation and Park District sphere of influence to better 
coincide with the City of Camarillo’s social and economic community of 
interest. 

(3) The sphere of influence for the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park 
District is hereby updated to include the area shown as “proposed sphere 
of influence”, as generally depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

(4) The Commission directs staff to have the official sphere of influence 
geographic information system data maintained for the Ventura LAFCO by 
the Ventura County Public Works Agency and Information Systems 
Department as the official sphere of influence record for the Pleasant 
Valley Recreation and Park District updated consistent with this action. 

(5) The Commission, as lead agency for the purposes of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), hereby determines that the sphere of  
influence update for the Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District is 
exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines 

(6) The Commission directs staff to file a Notice of Exemption as lead agency 
under Section 15062 of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 

 

 



 
 

Resolution LAFCO 05-28S 3 
Sphere of Influence Update Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District 

January 18, 2006 
Page 3 of 3 

 
This resolution was adopted on January 18, 2006. 
 
AYES: Commissioners Grandsen, Hess, Long, Parks, Parvin, Richardson, 

Waunch 
 
NOES: None 

 
ABSTAINS: None 

 
 
 
Dated: ______________  ___________________________________________ 
     Chair, Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
 
Copies: Pleasant Valley Recreation and Park District 

City of Camarillo 
Ventura County Assessor 
Ventura County Auditor 
Ventura County Information Systems Department 
Ventura County Surveyor 
Ventura County Planning 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 

 
COUNTY:   CITY:      SPECIAL DISTRICT:   PUBLIC: 
Linda Parks, Vice Chair  Don Waunch    Dick Richardson, Chair  Kenneth M. Hess 
Kathy Long   John Zaragoza    Ted Grandsen     
Alternate:  Alternate:  Alternate: Alternate: 
Steve Bennett  Janice Parvin  George Lange Louis Cunningham 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER:  LAFCO ANALYST:   OFFICE MANAGER/CLERK: LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Everett Millais Kim Uhlich     Debbie Schubert    Leroy Smith 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date:  January 18, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:  LAFCO Commissioners 
 
FROM: Everett Millais, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Employment Agreement For LAFCO Executive Officer 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Ratify and request the Ventura County Board of Supervisors to approve a new 
“Employment Agreement For Executive Officer Of The Ventura Local Agency Formation 
Commission.” 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Based on a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between LAFCO and the County of 
Ventura, the County is responsible for providing LAFCO with employees to staff its 
operations. Pursuant to the MOA and at the request of LAFCO, the County entered into 
an Employment Agreement for the LAFCO Executive Officer. The most recent 
Executive Officer Employment Agreement was entered into in March 2000 for the both 
the LAFCO Executive Officer and the Ventura Council of Governments (VCOG) 
Executive Director. In June 2001, after the adoption of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg 
legislation affecting LAFCOs and at the request of LAFCO, the County amended the 
Executive Officer Employment Agreement to reference that the Executive Officer will be 
employed full time by LAFCO. 
 
In November 2005 the Commission took action to request the County Board of 
Supervisors to update the employment agreement for the LAFCO Executive Officer 
consistent with the approval of revised salary ranges for employees with LAFCO 
specific job classifications and the recommendations of County Counsel, and to include 



 
 
Staff Report 
Employment Agreement for LAFCO Executive Officer 
January 18, 2006 
Page 2 of 2 

the current job description for the LAFCO Executive Officer classification approved by 
the Commission in 2004. 
 
Consistent with this action the County Counsel has drafted a new “Employment 
Agreement For Executive Officer Of The Ventura Local Agency Formation 
Commission.” (“The Agreement” - Attachment 1). The Agreement is between the 
County of Ventura and me as your Executive Officer. As such, it must be approved by 
the County Board of Supervisors before it becomes effective. In addition, even though 
the Ventura LAFCO is not a formal party to the Agreement, the Agreement provides for 
ratification by the Commission before it becomes effective. This is to ensure that the 
Commission, who is responsible for reimbursing the County for all LAFCO employee 
expenses, is also aware of, and agrees with, the provisions and terms of the 
Agreement. 
 
The Agreement has been reviewed by both the County Chief Deputy Executive Officer 
(Human Resources) and me, and found acceptable. To expedite the approval process 
and to ensure that the Board of Supervisors is fully aware of the Commission’s review of 
the Agreement, it is recommended that the Commission act now to ratify the 
Agreement. Once the Commission acts, staff will work with the County Chief Deputy 
Executive Officer (Human Resources) to schedule this matter for action by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Revised and recommended “Employment Agreement For Executive Officer Of 
The Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission.” 

2. Employment Agreement for Executive Officer of LAFCO and VCOG (the current 
employment agreement). 

3. First Amendment to Employment Agreement for Executive Officer (the only 
amendment to the existing employment agreement). 


	Agenda 01.18.06.pdf
	Item 4 - Election of Officers 06 SR-Continue
	Item 7 - Minutes 11-16-05
	Item 8 SR - LAFCO 05-27 City of Santa Paula Reorganization
	Item 8 - 1_05-27 City of Santa Paula April Lane SR.pdf
	Item 8 - 2_April Lane VicinityMap
	Item 8 - 3_Resolution 05-27 Santa Paula - April Lane Reso
	Item 8 - 4_April Lane Address Detail Map

	Item 9 SR LAFCo 05-28 S1 & 3 Sphere of Influence Review and Update
	Item 9 - 1_05-28S 1 & 0528S 3 SR; CIBCSD & PVRPD.pdf
	Item 9 - 2_Attachment 1
	Item 9 - 3_Resolution 05-28S 1 Reso CIBCSD
	Item 9 - 4_Resolution 05-28S 3 Reso PVRPD

	Item 10 - Employment Agreement LAFCO Executive Officer SR

	#5: #5
	#4: #4
	#3: #3
	Text4: #2
	#1: #1
	#3-b: #3
	Text7: #2
	Text8: #4
	Text9: #5


